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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
EASTERN DISTRICT OF WISCONSIN 

MILWAUKEE DIVISION 
 
 
Pamela Hennings on behalf of herself and all 
others similarly situated, 
 

Plaintiff, 
v. 
 
Alltran Financial, LP a/k/a J.C. Christensen and 
Associates, Inc., 
 

Defendant. 
 

 
Case No.: 16-cv-1561 

 
CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT 
 
JURY TRIAL DEMANDED 

 
PRELIMINARY STATEMENT 

 
1. This is a consumer class action brought on behalf of Wisconsin consumers subjected to 

Defendant’s violations of the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1692, et seq. 

(“FDCPA”). This law prohibits debt collectors from engaging in misleading and unfair 

collection practices.  Defendant engaged in a misleading and unfair collection of debts by 

falsely stating they were licensed by the Division of Banking in the Wisconsin Department 

of Financial Institutions.  

JURISDICTION 

2. Jurisdiction of this Court arises out of events emanating from this District and this Court has 

jurisdiction pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1692 et seq. and 28 U.S.C § 1331. 

3. Venue is proper in this District pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b) because the conduct at 

issue occurred in this District, Plaintiff resides in this District, and Defendant conducts 

business in this district. 

PARTIES 
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4. Plaintiff Pamela Hennings (hereinafter “Ms. Hennings”) f/k/a Pamela Pagels is a natural 

person who resides in the City of Mequon, County of Ozaukee, State of Wisconsin, and is a 

“consumer” as that term is defined by 15 U.S.C. § 1692a(3). 

5. Defendant Alltran Financial, LP a/k/a JC Christensen and Associates (hereinafter “Defendant 

JC Christensen”) is a business with offices located at 200 14th Ave E, Sartell, MN 56377, and 

a registered agent of CT Corporation System Inc., 1010 Dale St N., St. Paul, MN 55117. 

6. Defendant JC Christensen is a “debt collector” as that term is defined by the FDCPA, 15 

U.S.C. § 1692a(6).  

 

FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS AS TO PLAINTIFF 

7. Ms. Hennings incurred a consumer debt as that term is defined at 15 U.S.C. § 1692a(5) to 

American General Finance.  

8. Ms. Hennings filed for bankruptcy in 2011, and she received a discharge on the debt owed 

to American General Finance. 

9. In 2014, LVNV Funding LLC sued her ex-husband regarding the debt to American General 

Finance. 

10. Ms. Hennings was not named as a defendant on the action by LVNV Funding LLC. 

11. LVNV Funding LLC was granted a judgment against Ms. Hennings’ ex-husband only. 

12. Defendant JC Christensen is attempting to collect on that judgment. 

13. In an attempt to collect that judgment, they sent a collection letter to Ms. Hennings.  See 

Exhibit A. 

14. That letter states that “This collection agency is licensed by the Division of Banking in the 

Wisconsin Department of Financial Institutions, www.wdfi.org.”  
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15. Upon information and belief, Defendant JC Christensen is not licensed with the Division 

of Banking. 

16. It is within the state’s general police powers to regulate collection agencies operating 

within the state.  

17. Pursuant to the FDCPA, consumers have a right to be free from illegal and unpermitted 

collection actions. 

18. All collection agencies operating within Wisconsin are regulated and licensed. 

19. Pursuant to the FDCPA, consumers have a right to be free from contact from collection 

agencies that are operating outside the regulation, supervision, and compliance with state 

laws designed to protect the consumers. 

20. Pursuant to the FDCPA, consumers have a right to receive truthful collection letters that 

do not contain false statements 

CLASS ALLEGATIONS 

21. Plaintiff brings this action individually and as a class action, pursuant to Rules 23(a) and 

23(b) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, on behalf of the following class: 

ALL CONSUMERS IN THE STATE OF WISCONSIN WHO RECEIVED 
LETTERS FROM DEFENDANT IN THE ONE YEAR PRIOR TO THE 
FILING OF THIS CASE THAT STATED THAT DEFENDANT WAS 
LICENSED BY THE DIVISION OF BANKING IN THE WISCONSIN 
DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS. 

 
22. Upon information and belief, the class is so numerous that joinder of all members is 

impracticable. The precise number of Class members is known only to Defendant, but is 

believed to be above 100.  

23. There are questions of law and fact common to the Class that predominate over any 

questions affecting only individual Class members. The principal questions are whether 
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Defendant violated the FDCPA by sending out a letter stating that they were licensed with 

the state of Wisconsin, when they were not licensed.  

24. Plaintiff’s claims are typical of the claims of the Class, which all arise from the same 

operative facts and are based on the same legal theories. 

25. Plaintiff will fairly and adequately protect the interests of the Class. Plaintiff is committed 

to vigorously litigating this matter and has retained counsel experienced in handling class 

actions and claims involving unlawful collection practices. Neither Plaintiff nor her 

counsel has any interests which might cause her not to vigorously pursue this claim. 

26. This action should be maintained as a class action because the prosecution of separate 

actions by individual members of the Class would create a risk of inconsistent or varying 

adjudications with respect to individual members which would establish incompatible 

standards of conduct for the parties opposing the Class, as well as a risk of adjudications 

with respect to individual members which would as a practical matter be dispositive of the 

interests of other members not parties to the adjudications or substantially impair or impede 

their ability to protect their interests. 

27. A class action is a superior method for the fair and efficient adjudication of this 

controversy. The interest of Class members in individually controlling the prosecution of 

separate claims against Defendants is slight because the maximum statutory damages are 

limited to $1,000.00 under the FDCPA.  Management of the Class claims is likely to 

present significantly fewer difficulties than those presented in many individual claims. The 

identities of the Class members may be obtained from Defendant’s records. 

28. This Class Action seeks statutory damages for the class based on the common injuries 

sustained by Plaintiff and the putative class.   
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TRIAL BY JURY 

29. Plaintiff is entitled to and hereby demands a trial by jury.  U.S. Const. Amend. 7; Fed. R. 

Civ. Pro. 38. 

CAUSES OF ACTION 
 

COUNT I. 
VIOLATIONS OF THE FAIR DEBT COLLECTION PRACTICES ACT 

 
30. Plaintiff incorporates by reference all of the above paragraphs of this Complaint as though 

fully stated herein.  

31. The foregoing acts and omissions of Defendant JC Christensen constitute numerous and 

multiple violations of the FDCPA, including but not limited to 15 U.S.C. §§ 1692e, 

1692e(1), 1692e(2), 1692e(5), 1692e(10), and 1692f(1). 

32. As a result of Defendant JC Christensen’s violations of the FDCPA, Plaintiff is entitled to 

actual damages, statutory damages pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1692k(a)(2)(A); and, 

reasonable attorney’s fees and costs pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1692k(a)(3) from Defendant. 

 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff respectfully prays that relief be granted as follows:  

• That judgment be entered against Defendant for statutory damages pursuant to 15 
U.S.C. § 1692k(a)(2)(A) and (B); 

• That the Court award costs and reasonable attorneys’ fees, pursuant to 15 U.S.C. 
§ 1692k(a)(3);  

• That an order be entered certifying the proposed Class under Rule 23 of the Federal 
Rules of Civil Procedure and appointing Plaintiff and her counsel to represent the 
Class;  

• That the Court grant declaratory and injunctive relief, in the form of finding 
Defendant’s conduction to violate the law and prohibiting them from continuing 
their collection practices; and 

• That the Court grants such other and further relief as may be just and proper. 
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Dated this 22nd day of November, 2016. 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 

  

By: s/ Heidi N. Miller  
Nathan E. DeLadurantey, (WI #1063937) 
Heidi N. Miller (WI # 1087696) 
DELADURANTEY LAW OFFICE, LLC 
735 W. Wisconsin Ave, Suite 720 
Milwaukee, WI 53233 
Telephone:  (414) 377-0515 
Facsimile:  (414) 755-0860 
Nathan@dela-law.com 
Heidi@dela-law.com  
 
Thomas J. Lyons, Jr., Esq. 
CONSUMER JUSTICE CENTER, P.A. 
367 Commerce Court 
Vadnais Heights, MN 55127 
Telephone:  (651) 770-9707  
Facsimile:  (651) 704-0907 
tommycjc@aol.com  
 
ATTORNEYS FOR PLAINTIFF 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
for the

__________ District of __________ 

)
)
)
)
)
)
)

Plaintiff

v. Civil Action No.

Defendant

SUMMONS IN A CIVIL ACTION

To: (Defendant’s name and address)

A lawsuit has been filed against you.

Within 21 days after service of this summons on you (not counting the day you received it) — or 60 days if you
are the United States or a United States agency, or an officer or employee of the United States described in Fed. R. Civ.
P. 12 (a)(2) or (3) — you must serve on the plaintiff an answer to the attached complaint or a motion under Rule 12 of
the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure.  The answer or motion must be served on the plaintiff or plaintiff’s attorney,
whose name and address are:

If you fail to respond, judgment by default will be entered against you for the relief demanded in the complaint. 
You also must file your answer or motion with the court.

CLERK OF COURT

Date:
Signature of Clerk or Deputy Clerk
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Civil Action No.

PROOF OF SERVICE

(This section should not be filed with the court unless required by Fed. R. Civ. P. 4 (l))

This summons for (name of individual and title, if any)

was received by me on (date) .

’ I personally served the summons on the individual at (place)

on (date) ; or

’ I left the summons at the individual’s residence or usual place of abode with (name)

, a person of suitable age and discretion who resides there,

on (date) , and mailed a copy to the individual’s last known address; or

’ I served the summons on (name of individual) , who is

 designated by law to accept service of process on behalf of (name of organization)

on (date) ; or

’ I returned the summons unexecuted because ; or

’ Other (specify):

.

My fees are $ for travel and $ for services, for a total of $ .

I declare under penalty of perjury that this information is true.

Date:
Server’s signature

Printed name and title

Server’s address

Additional information regarding attempted service, etc:
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Total Due: $5, 310.62

Exhibit A

NOTICE OF JUDGMENT COLLECTION
near Pamela G Pagel%
J, C, Christensen &Associates has been contradted to lead and represent irt the collection of the judgment awarded on yourSpring leaf Financial services Inc, account. This judgment, judgment number: 14-SC-576. was awarded on 08/20/20114 anci holdsa current balance of $5, 31162.

Tills JUDGMENT MAY Be FORWARDED TO AN ATTORNEY FOR EXECUTION
We have been given authorization to negotiate SETTLEMENT terms for SATISFACTION OF THE JUDGMENT entered againstyou. Please review the following settlement opportunities to :rake voluntary resolution of your judgment a reality:

ell Settle your judgment now for a lump-sum of $3,982.97 on your outstanding judgment balance.

elExtend your time and settle your judgment in 12 payments of $37617 and you have the flexibility of paying thesettlement over twelve months.

Contact us to discuss your financial situatioh arid a customized payment plan that may be available to you.ell
To resolve your debt online, please visit us at Armv...1CeSecurepav.com. Most payment options are free with notransaction charges.

'rake advantage of this opportunity to settle your judgment and avoid the possibility of this judgment being forwarded to an
attorney for execution. Call us at 886-648-85.81.
To take advantage of this opportunity tO Setlic your judgment. contact Robert Johnson at U56-64/3-8591. Please recognize thatinterest is accruing on your judgment. Beaause of interest being added, the amount due en the clay you pay may be greater, Aslong as you haven't niade other arrangements to repay this debt, you may be eligible for this offer. For aimuunting purposes, yourfirst payment toward the settlenient must be received within 40 calendar days after the date of this letter. if you wish to make ariamelit pFepeis-al-afier-that-ifIrneT-please-aathits-te-discuss-it: Aleure••fe-not obligated-tO-rerrew-this-effer_- The-ivorities fisted-.above do not alter or amend your validation rights as contained in this document.
Pkease Oe aware that if the amount of debt forgiven as a result of settlement is equal to or greater than $600.00, your currentcreditor may be required by Internal Revenue Code Section 6050P to report the forgiven debt to the IRS and issue a form leiggc.if you nave any questions regarding your personal taxes, it is recommended you consult with a certifieCI public accountant or otheriax professional.
This communication is from a debt collector. This ie an attempt to doiledt a debt and any information obtained will be used for that
purpose.

Unless you notify this office within 30 days after receiving this notice that you olispute the validity of this debt or any portionthereof, this &roc Will assume this debt is valid. If you notify this office in writing within 30 days from receiving this notice that youJispute the validity of this debt or any portion theruo•. this office will obtain verification of the debt or obtain a copy of a judgmentand mall you a copy of such judgment or verification. If you request this office in writing within 30 days after receiving this notic*this office wHI provide you with the name and address of the original creditor, if different from the cun-ent creditor.
This collection agency is licensed by the Division of laanking In the Wisoonsin Department of Financial Institutions,Aron....rgArd/ft.

CUSTOMER SERVCE AND PAVI9 ENT IN FORMATJON

TOt I. FREE P NONE,AP4 0 HOu Rs:
6END MALI_ ANLNOR PAYMENT ro,Pay your bill online! MI 816-6484591..e.:-.?. VISA= at. 21 JO. Christensen anel Av.iaciatras, kmmon-Tuess aarrkTperil-Weci. Elarn-Aarri PO'Hei 5T9lokrWvifi Thur-Frj 5ani-7prn, Sat aarn-l2pni Sauk Rapuis, MN 56375

Piesse.detach and return with payment in the encased envelope. R.CP17t
PO Box I authorize the foilowing amount to be charged to my credit
Southgate, Nil 48195-0952 card shownP gle =1 ilk' 1=1

Cardholder name: Exp. Date:
Account 01170 rinEr mu: DEED07719116 aiAmount Signre:
File Number: 19905215 Balance Due: 5, 311C1, 62
Qriginal Account 4: XXXX7430
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Resurgent Capital Services L..P LVNV Funding, LLC Ashley Funding Services I-LC

Sherman Acquisition L.L.0 PYCin LLC SFG RED, LLC

Resurgent Capital Services PR LLC Anson Street LLC Pinnacle Credit Services, LLC

irdormation We may Collect. The Sherman Companies may collect the following personal
information:
(1) information that we receive from your account file at the time we purchase or begin to service
your account, such as your name, address, social secunty rit.imber, and assets; (2) information that
you may give us through discussion with you, or that we may obtain through your transactions with
us, such as your income and payment history; (3) infornation that we receive from consumer

reporting agencies, such as your creditworthiness and credit history, and (4) information that we

obtain from other third party information providers, such as public records and databases that
contain publicly available data about you, such as bankruptcy and mortgage fitings. All of the
personal information that we collect is referred to in this notice as "collected information".

Confidentiality anti security_laCcI'lected information, At the Sherman Companies, we restrict
access to collected infOmation about you to individuals who need to know such coliected
information in order to perform certan services in connection with your account. We maintain
physical safeguards (like restricted access), electronic safeguards (like encryption and password
protection), and procedural safeguards (such as authentication procedures) to protect collected
information about you.

Sharinçj Colkted lnformt1on wifijAthllates From time to time, the Sherman Companies may
share collected information about customem and former customers with each other in connection
with administering and collecting accounts to the extent permitted under the Fair Debt Collection
Practices Act or applicable state law.

_I:Formation 10., ia Third Parties The Sherman Companies oho not share
collected information about customers or former customers with third parties, except as permitted in
connection with administering and collecting accounts under the Fair Debt Collections Practices Act
and applicable state law.
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